

C O N S T I T U T I O N

(translation by CLRC)

CANADIAN CATTLE BREEDERS ASSOCIATION

Amended to 27 October 2004

CANADIAN CATTLE BREEDERS' ASSOCIATION

Constitution Approved May 3, 1906

Affiliated July 24, 1950

AMENDMENTS

Amended Fees	February 15, 1921
Amended Articles Rules of Entry & Fees	February 5, 1925
Amended Articles Rules of Entry & Fees	February 25, 1926
Amended Fees	February 1, 1928
Amended Article Rules of Entry & Fees	February 11, 1929
Amended Fees	February 9, 1931
Revised	February 23, 1932
Amended Articles 3,7,20,24 & 26	March 2, 1933
Amended Articles 20 & 26	February 21, 1935
Amended Articles 20 & 22	March 4, 1937
Amended Articles 6 & 22	February 12, 1942
Amended Articles 16,20 & 22	April 11, 1945
Amended Articles 20 & 26	February 23, 1949
Amended Articles 21,23-28	June 8, 1950
Amended Fees	June 25, 1951
Amended Article 17	May 22, 1953
Amended Articles 3,20 & 25	July 18, 1955
Amended Article 20	May 19, 1961
Amended Article 25	May 25, 1964
Amended Article 20	May 2, 1968

Amended Articles 3 & 25	April 11, 1969
Amended Article 25	April 26, 1971
Amended Article 25	October 4, 1972
Amended Articles 7,12 & 25	June 16, 1976
Amended Article 25	October 26, 1978
Amended Article 25	May 20, 1980
Amended Article 25	June 10,1981
Amended Article 20 & 25	September 13, 1983
Amended Articles 1-7,12 13,15-18,21-25	June 20, 1984
Amended Articles 6, 8 & 20	May 8, 1986
Amended Articles 3 & 20	May 5, 1988
Amended Articles 14, 19, 23 & 24	September 7, 1989
Constitution revised re: copy of Association's constitution (Dept. of Agriculture notified)	May 15, 1991
Amended Article 19	September 15, 1993
Amended Article 6	September 26, 1996
Amended Article 19	June 11, 1997
Amended Article 19 1b Added Article 19 1c	September 20, 1998
Amended Articles 19 2-4), 15 & 21	October 17, 2002
Amended Article 6	October 27, 2004

CANADIAN CATTLE BREEDERS ASSOCIATION

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS

Administrative regulations governing the activities of the Association

1. DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply to the Administrative Regulations unless otherwise stated:

- a) "association", the Canadian Cattle Breeders Association
- b) "CLRC", Canadian Livestock Records Corporation

2. OBJECTS

The Association shall have for its objects the encouragement and development of breeding of the purebred the breed of Canadian Cattle in Canada, and the bringing of the breeders into close and friendly relation with each other in order that they may co-operate in their efforts to further the interests of the breed.

- 1. By keeping a record of the breeding of Canadian cattle and by collecting, preserving and publishing data and documents relating to the same.
- 2. By maintaining an efficient inspection among breeders of the breed of Canadian Cattle and to prevent, detect and punish fraud.
- 3. To publish or cause to be published literature devoted to the welfare of the breed.
- 4. By establishing standards of breeding and by carrying out a system of registration under the CLRC system.
- 5. By adopting means from time to time to protect and assist those engaged in propagation and breeding of the breed of Canadian Cattle in compliance with the Live Stock Pedigree Act or any regulations made thereunder.
- 6. And for these purposes to have power to make all needful contracts and agreements and to make, alter and repeal regulations subject to the provisions hereinafter set forth.

3. MEMBERS

1. There shall be three categories of members:

- a) **HONORARY MEMBERS:** The Association may appoint honorary life members at a general meeting if the board of directors have by resolution, named the proposed member or members and recommended that such appointment be made, but such honorary member shall take no part in the management of the Association's affairs, their position shall be purely honorary.
- b) **ANNUAL MEMBERS:** Annual members shall be those persons,

institutions or companies who shall pay an annual membership fee due the first day of January each year, which amount shall be specified in the rules of the Association. Any former life member shall be recognized as an annual member, without having to supply additional membership fee, provided a written annual request for same is submitted to the Association.

- c) ANNUAL SUPPORTIVE MEMBER: Any person belonging to the same family or partner of the same farm, of which at least one person is already a member of the Association, may become an annual supporting member of the Association, if he pays the Association a contribution in support of it. He will have the same rights as an annual member, with the exception of the right to vote and that of being elected to general assemblies of the Association.

2. Application for annual membership shall be in writing and each applicant on becoming a member shall agree to be bound by the administrative regulations and amendments thereto and all rules of the Association, but the Association shall have power to reject any application for membership.

Application for partnership or incorporated company membership shall specify the person authorized to vote, act or sign for the partnership or company. A member of a partnership or company other than the person mentioned in the application may be authorized by the partnership or company to act or vote at any meeting of the Association.

3. All members in good standing shall as a matter of contract and except as hereinafter provided enjoy the same rights and privileges and be subject to the same liabilities as the original incorporators of this Association. No member who is in arrears of membership or other fees shall enjoy such rights and privileges.

4. A member in good standing is a member who is not in arrears of membership or other fees or dues or suspended.

5. The financial liability of a member to the creditors of the Association shall be limited to the amount due from him in respect to his membership and any registration fees.

6. Any member who has paid his annual membership fee in any year shall be entitled to receive free of charge such publications of the Association issued for that year as are authorized by the board of directors to be distributed free of charge.

7. No member shall hold office or be entitled to vote at a meeting if at the time in arrears of membership fees and no member shall be entitled to vote who was not a member of the Association at the time notice was given calling such meeting.

8. The membership year of the Association shall correspond to the calendar year.

9. The Board of Directors shall have power to suspend or expel any member who fails to observe any rule or regulation set forth in this administrative regulations, or whose conduct is in the opinion of the board prejudicial to the interests of the Association. A member so suspended or expelled shall after the expiration of sixty days have the right to apply to the board of directors for reinstatement and shall be reinstated at the next meeting of the board provided two-thirds of the members of the board present thereat vote in the affirmative. If the board of directors refuse to reinstate a person suspended or expelled from membership such person shall have the right to apply for reinstatement by the next succeeding general meeting, but reinstatement by a general meeting, shall be only by a vote of two-thirds of the members present thereat and voting.

10. Any person expelled from membership by any other association incorporated under the Live Stock Pedigree Act shall not be eligible for membership in this Association and if he is a member at the time of such expulsion, his membership shall thereupon forthwith terminate automatically.

4. OFFICES

The head office of the Association shall be at such place as the secretary resides, and the office for the registration of pedigrees shall be the office of the CLRC, in the city of Ottawa, Canada, under the supervision of the Board of Directors of CLRC.

5. FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Association shall correspond with the calendar year.

6. OFFICERS

1. DIRECTORS: The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a board of eleven directors who shall be elected by ballot at the annual general meeting of the Association and shall hold office until the next annual general meeting or until their successors are elected. All shall be eligible for re-election.

The Quebec territory is made up of three large regions (clubs) which have been decided upon based on the number of breeders and members of the Association and the geographic distribution of same.

These regions are:

The “Eastern” region which encompasses the South Shore and the Lower St. Lawrence;

The “Northern” region which encompasses the North Shore of the St. Lawrence (from Gatineau to Tadoussac) and includes the regions of Saguenay, Lac St. Jean, Beauce and Lotbinière;

The “West-Central” region which encompasses the southern St. Lawrence to the west of Lotbinière and Beauce.

The breeders and members residing in Ontario can form their own club or can join the West-Central club.

Each of the three regions will be represented by two directors on the Board of Directors of the Association. The Board of Directors of the Association will be made up of six directors to whom will be added a secretary and a treasurer. The latter two shall maintain the books and administer the rules and regulations. The latter two shall not be permitted to vote at directors meetings or at executive committee meetings. As before, the Board of Directors will select an executive committee by choosing one director from each of the three regions of Quebec, one being the President, the other, the Vice-President. A secretary and treasurer will also be selected. During a Board of Directors meeting, the deciding vote will be case by the president in the event of a tie.

The Board of Directors shall have the power to fill vacancies which may occur among their number; officers or committees, through resignation or death.

The Board of Directors may delegate many of their powers to the executive committee.

2. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE: The directors shall at their first meeting after the annual general meeting elect by ballot two of their number to act on the executive committee who together with the president, vice-president and secretary and the treasurer shall constitute the executive committee. A copy of the minutes of each executive meeting shall be forwarded to each director within ten days after the meeting.

3. PRESIDENT: The president shall be elected annually from among their number by the Board of Directors at their first meeting after the annual general meeting. His term of office shall be for one year and he shall be eligible for re-election for two terms or until his successor is elected. The duties of the president shall be to preside at all meetings of the Association, the Board of Directors and the executive committee to exercise a general supervision over the affairs of the Association and generally to do all matters, acts and things as are usually done by presidents of similar organizations.

4. VICE-PRESIDENT: A vice-president shall be elected in the same manner, hold office for a similar term and in case the president is unable to act on account of illness or absence, shall perform all the duties of president.

5. The Association may at any annual meeting elect an honorary president and an honorary vice-president.

6. SPECIAL COMMITTEES: During an annual general meeting, the members of the association may nominate a special committee, provided that the committee includes one member of the Board of Directors. The action of any special committee is subject to the approval of the Board of Directors.

7. SECRETARY: The Board of Directors, shall from time to time as occasion may require, appoint a secretary, who shall act under the control and with the approval of the Board of Directors. His duties shall be to attend all meetings of the Association and of the directors and of the executive committee to keep exact minutes of the proceedings of the same, to carry on all head office correspondence, to prepare annual or other reports, to give notice of all meetings of the Association, the Board of Directors or the executive committee and furnish from time to time such statements in detail of the affairs of the Association or of such matters as may be directed by the board of directors or the executive committee and generally to do such things and perform such duties as and when directed by the Board of Directors or the executive committee. The Board of Directors may require of him a satisfactory guarantee.

8. TREASURER: The Board of Directors, shall from time to time as occasion may require, appoint a treasurer who shall act under the control and with the approval of the Board of Directors. His duties shall be, when so directed by the proper authority under the administrative regulations; to receive all monies, bills, notes, cheques, drafts or currency of the Association and to deposit the same in a chartered bank of Canada or Caisse Populaire on behalf of the Association, as received or forward the same to the Accountant, CLRC as hereinafter provided and to pay same out again only by cheque countersigned by the president; to keep proper books of account containing entries of all such matters or things as are usually entered in books of account of similar organizations. The board of directors may require of him a satisfactory guarantee.

9. REGISTRAR: The CLRC shall assign to this association a person to act as a registrar, and fix his remuneration at such reasonable sum as may be proportionate with that of registrars acting for other associations in affiliation with the CLRC.

10. AUDITORS: The Association at each annual general meeting shall appoint and fix his remuneration. His duties shall be to examine the books of account of the Association, vouchers for all payment and certify the usual statement of receipts and expenditures, assets and liabilities for the year for presentation at the next annual general meeting.

11. REPRESENTATIVES: Representatives to organizations asking that such be appointed shall be appointed at the annual general meeting, but if for any reason any of these are not so appointed, the Board of Directors or the executive committee shall have power to appoint the same. Representatives to the CLRC Board shall be appointed by the Board of Directors.

7. MEETING

1. The annual and other general meetings of the Association shall be held at such time and place as may be decided upon by the executive committee and shall be deemed to be duly called if notice thereof be sent by letter to each member at least fifteen days prior thereto. The notice shall be deemed sufficiently given if directed to the address of the member appearing on the books of the association, but the non-receipt of such notice by any member shall not invalidate the proceedings at any general meeting and the notice shall be deemed to be duly given on the day of the posting thereof.

A copy of the notice calling an annual or general meeting shall be forwarded to the Minister of Agriculture for Canada and to the Director CLRC in a like manner as to members of this association.

2. Notice of meetings of the directors, other than the one following the annual meeting, shall be mailed, postage prepaid, to each one of them, seven days at least before date of meeting, to his last known place of residence appearing on the books of the Association.

3. Notice of meetings of the executive committee shall be given similarly to notice of meetings of the directors at least five days before date of meeting.

4. A meeting of the directors or of the executive committee may be held on shorter notice or without notice, provided all members respectively have given their consent to the meeting being held. A minute of such consent shall be entered in the minutes.

5. For the transaction of the business of the Association at an annual or other general meeting a quorum shall be ten; at the meetings of the directors, a quorum shall be four; at the meetings of the executive committee, a quorum shall be three.

6. Any director who is not able to be present at a meeting shall be considered present and voting on any subject upon which he sends his opinion in writing and his consent thereto to the secretary and such consent shall be entered in the minutes. The directors may act on any matter within their power by correspondence where each gives his consent thereto and a minute of such action shall be entered in the minute book.

8. ORDER OF PROCEDURE

The order or procedure at all annual and general meetings shall be as follows:

1. Identification of members.
2. Reading minutes of previous meeting.
3. Reports of officers, directors and committees.
4. Correspondence.
5. Unfinished business.
6. If annual meeting, election of directors and officers.
7. Appointment of auditors.
8. New business.
9. Adjournment.

The foregoing order, with the exception of identification of members, may be changed at the pleasure of the meeting assembled.

9. AUDIT AND ANNUAL REPORT

The board of directors at each annual general meeting shall submit a complete report of its acts and of the affairs of the Association; it shall present a detailed statement duly audited of the receipts and expenditures of the preceding year and of the assets and liabilities of the Association. A copy of this report, a list of the members, the officers elected and also general information on the affairs of the Association shall be sent to the Minister of Agriculture for Canada within twenty days after the annual meeting.

10. EXPENSES, INCOME AND PROPERTY

The income and property of the association from whatever source derived, shall be applied solely towards the promotion and furtherance of the objects of the association and no part thereof shall be paid or transferred directly or indirectly by way of bonus or otherwise as profit or gain to members of the association, past, present or future, or to any person claiming through any member provided however, that nothing herein contained shall prevent the bonafide payment or remuneration to any secretary, treasurer, registrar, officer, clerk or servant or other persons for services actually rendered the Association whether such are members of the Association or not, and the expenses of the directors or other officers incurred in doing the business of the association.

The Association shall with other associations comprising the CLRC, pay to the Board of Directors of CLRC a proportionate amount of the expense of conducting the CLRC Office.

11. BOOKS

The Association shall cause a book to be kept by the secretary and by the secretary of each branch of the association, if any, wherein shall be contained a copy of the administrative regulations so that persons becoming members of the Association may at all reasonable times examine the same.

12. REGISTRATION AND MEMBERSHIP FEES

1. All fees shall be paid to the accountant of the CLRC and may be sent by Post Office Money Order or Cheque and payable at par in Ottawa, Ontario and they shall forthwith be deposited by him to the credit of the Association in a chartered bank or Caisse Populaire selected by the Board of Directors of CLRC.

2. In case membership fees to the Association are received by the treasurer of this Association, they shall immediately be forwarded to the accountant, CLRC, Ottawa, for deposit.

13. AMENDMENTS

The administrative regulations or rules of entry may be amended at any general meeting of the Association, but no amendment shall be valid until submitted and approved by the Minister of Agriculture for Canada. Notices of all proposed amendments must be given to the secretary in time to be included in and they shall be included in the notice calling such general meeting, otherwise the meeting shall have no power to deal with the same.

14. REGISTRATION OF PEDIGREES

1. A register shall be kept at the office of the CLRC. This register shall be known as the Herd Book of the breed of Canadian Cattle and shall be published by the CLRC at such time as decided by the board of directors and in such form as the information on office duplicates of certificates of registration issued warrants.

2. There shall be furnished by the Board of Directors of CLRC for all living animals registered a certificate of registration except as otherwise provided in the form adopted by the CLRC. The pedigree shall be in such form as decided on by the board of directors.

3. All certificates of registration shall be submitted for the approval of the officer appointed for the purpose by the Minister of Agriculture for Canada.

4. Any person suspended or expelled from membership shall not be allowed the privilege of registering pedigrees in the record of the Association.

5. Any member or non-member shall apply for registration or transfer of pedigrees in the record of the Association and shall pay the fees specified in the "Rules" of the Association.

6. The Board of Directors of CLRC shall have power, for any cause which in the opinion of the committee seems proper, to refuse application for registration or transfer from any person whether a member or not. Any such action taken by the record committee under this provision shall be immediately reported to this Association.

15. REGISTRATION AND PERMANENT IDENTIFICATION

a) Permanent identification number: CLRC registration number

Besides issuing traditional registration numbers on the registration or recordation certificate of all Canadian Cattle, CLRC will also include on this document the unique and international permanent identification number issued by Canadian Cattle Identification Agency (CCIA) and by Agri-Traçabilité Québec (ATQ). The identification of cattle will follow the guidelines as set out by the above-named organizations according to

federal law, and, their registration or recordation certificate as issued by CLRC will reflect the permanent identification number and the traditional registration number.

b)Optional tattooing

A breeder so wishing is still permitted to identify each animal by tattoo markings as an additional identification. A new breeder so wishing can obtain a tattoo combination from CLRC for use as an additional identification. In the event of a change in the name of a partnership or company or if any party is taken into partnership, the tattoo letters may be transferred upon application to the CLRC of the registered owner or his authorized representative. Likewise the transfer may be made from a deceased owner to his heir.

16. NAMING OF ANIMALS

1. An animal registered in the herd book must be identified by a name which shall include five parts.
2. The first part shall be a prefix and shall be used to identify the herd in which the animal was bred; a breeder, in paying the required fee, may register for his exclusive use, a name or herd prefix. The CLRC shall allot free of charge and irrevocably a prefix to the breeder who did not avail himself of this privilege before his first application for registration. The Association shall furnish the CLRC with a list of the prefixes to be allotted.
3. The second part shall be used to identify the paternal family in which the animal belongs; this family shall be designated by the name of the sire of the animal or an abbreviation thereof.
4. The third part shall be the name of the animal to be registered.
5. The fourth part shall be the order number of birth in the herd; this order includes all the purebred Canadian Cattle born in the herd, whether they are registered or not.
6. The fifth part shall be the designating year letter denoting the year of birth.
7. Names shall not contain more than thirty letter spaces or characters, including herd names but not numeral affix.
8. It shall not be permissible to change the name of an animal after it has been registered.

17. HERD RECORDS

There shall be kept by each breeder a private record which shall contain full particulars of his breeding operations. This record shall at all times be open to the inspection of officials of this Association, officials of the Department of Agriculture for Canada and officials of the CLRC.

18. STANDARD FOR REGISTRATION

A standard for registration of male and female animals and for approved females shall from time to time, and as occasion may require, be made in a manner determined by the board of directors.

19. RULES OF ELIGIBILITY

SECTION 1 There will be three categories of Cattle:

- a) REGISTERED: Registered animals will be those having 50% or more Canadian blood. These animals will be eligible to receive a certificate of registration and will be registered in the Canadian Cattle Herd Book, according to the rules and regulations stipulated in further sections of this article.
- b) REGISTERED PUREBRED: Any animal having 93.75% (15/16) Canadian blood will be recognized as being purebred Canadian.
- c) ORIGINAL CANADIAN: Any animal born from paternal and maternal ancestors registered as purebred Canadian before 1970 will be included on the Canadian Cattle Breeders' Association list which enumerates potential parents of "Original Canadian". As well, any animal born from parents included on this list will be eligible for registration as "Original Canadian".

SECTION 2 ARRANGEMENTS.

Male and female cattle born in Canada, or elsewhere in the world shall be eligible for registration provided that:

- 1) they have been identified by tattoo markings within 60 days after the date of birth;
- 2) females have at least 50% or more purebred Canadian blood
- 3) males are from bulls registered in the Canadian Cattle Stud Book, classified "Good Plus" or better and from cows registered in the Canadian Cattle Stud Book with a combined deviation of at least 50 points from B.C.A. and a classification of "Good Plus or Better";
- 4) males which do not meet the requirements mentioned in the previous paragraph be recommended by the Genetic and Classification Committee and approved by the Executive Committee of the Association. In case of need, DNA genotyping by an official organization will be used as means of retracing an animal's ancestry or to confirm parentage.

SECTION 3 IDENTIFICATION CERTIFICATE

The NIP (National Identification Program) cards may be used to directly register Canadian Cattle. By completing a registration application and paying the prescribed fees, a breeder having paid a membership for the current year may exchange a NIP identification card for a certificate of registration, and the NIP identification cards may serve to register their daughters. Thus, a NIP A corresponds to 50%, a NIP B corresponds to 75%, and so on.

Note: Any female showing typical Canadian characteristics but that neither parent is officially recognized as a Canadian will be eligible for recordation with CLRC.

SECTION 4 COLOUR

The colour of the cattle, male or female, should be black, brown, fawn or red. On the male, any dense white markings is a disqualification. On the female a little white on udder or on belly will not disqualify, however, if such markings are visible on either side, she will not be eligible for registration but will be eligible for registration as a 50 per cent Canadian.

20. APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION

1. Members and non-members of the Association may register their cattle, according to the "Eligibility Rules" in Article 20.

2. Application for registration must be made by the person who was the owner at the time of birth otherwise the animals will not be eligible for or registration. Application for or registration forms for this purpose will be supplied free by the CLRC. All blank spaces must be filled in and the form must be signed by the owner of the calf at the time of birth, by the breeder of the animal and by the owner of the sire at the time the dam was served. The sire must be registered in the Herd Book of the breed of Canadian Cattle in the names of the owner certifying the service.

3. When the sire of an animal offered for entry was not at the time of service owned by the breeder of such animal, the owner of the said sire must sign the application for registration form in the place provided for the purpose, giving date of service with the name and number of the sire. Signature will not be accepted unless such ownership appears in the Herd Book of the breed of Canadian Cattle. In the case of an animal resulting from artificial insemination, a copy of the certificate of insemination shall be required.

4. The breeder of an animal is the owner of the dam at the time she was served. The first owner is the owner of the dam at the time the animal was born.

5. Nor will any number be assigned to a pedigree until every requirement has been complied with.

6. Applications for registration of twin animals must be forwarded at the same time providing both are living. If one is dead it must be so stated and sex of dead animal given.

7. Applications for registration of cattle resulting from the same embryo transplant shall be submitted with the official documents for the embryo transplant and blood tests.

21. IDENTIFICATION OF ANIMALS

a) In order to obtain a registration certificate for a Canadian, the breeder must first obtain permanent identification for said animal from the Canadian Cattle Identification Agency (CCIA) or from Agri-Traçabilité Québec (ATQ). The permanent identification number as well as the traditional registration number will be used as registration or recordation numbers on the certificate issued by CLRC.

b) Optionally, any new breeder can use tattoo markings as additional identification. He/she must request that CLRC assign a tattoo letter combination for his/her exclusive use. The breeder wishing to include the tattoo on the registration certificate of an animal must physically tattoo the animal in one ear before submitting the registration application to CLRC. The animal must be tattooed with the identification letters allotted to the owner, a unique herd number followed by a designating year letter to signify the year of birth.

22. TRANSFER AND DUPLICATE CERTIFICATES

1. An application for transfer of ownership of an animal for which a certificate of registration has been issued must be completed and shall show the name of the actual purchaser and be signed by the seller who shall

pay the transfer fee. The seller and the purchaser must be members in good standing of the Association. The application for transfer with the certificate of registration and fee must be forwarded to the CLRC.

In case an animal sold prior to inspection for which a certificate of registration has not been issued, the seller shall within the time as elsewhere specified in this administrative regulations, file application for transfer with the CLRC and shall pay transfer charge, if any..

Any breeder who sells an animal for breeding purposes and refuses to furnish proper transfer of ownership shall be asked by the CLRC for an explanation and if this explanation is not satisfactory to the Association he shall be suspended.

In the case of the sale of an animal for any other than for breeding purposes as prescribed by the regulations of the Association, the seller must not furnish the purchaser with the certificate of registration but must forward it, with full details of the sale, to the CLRC and it shall be retained by them. The transfer of ownership of an animal so reported shall not be recorded on the records of this Association.

2. In case a male or female is leased or loaned for breeding purposes, the form of lease supplied by the CLRC should be filled in and signed by the lessor and forwarded to the CLRC to be placed on record, and pay the regular fee. The lessee will in all cases be considered the breeder of the progeny of leased or loaned females.

3. Transfer forms and forms of lease will be supplied by the CLRC on request.

4. A duplicate certificate shall not be issued unless a statutory declaration is furnished, stating that the original is lost or destroyed and accounting as far as possible for such loss or destruction.

23. PENALTIES

1. If the sale of an animal takes place and a transfer of ownership is made on the records of the Association and if it is subsequently discovered that the animal sold is not the animal represented on the records the Record Committee of the CLRC shall on discovery of the same, declare the transfer void together with any entry or transfer of descendants of such animal and subsequent application for entry of transfer dependent on the signature of the person implicated shall be refused.

2. Registration or transfer of ownership of an animal is made on the understanding that the particulars given on the form for application for registration are correct. If it is subsequently discovered that the particulars given were incorrect or fraudulent, the registration shall be suspended or canceled by the Record Committee of the CLRC. Pedigrees registered incorrectly may be canceled and re-registered by the owner or by the Record Committee of the CLRC at the expense of the original applicant for registration of the animal but it is understood that neither the Association nor the Record Committee of the CLRC shall be responsible for any loss or damage that may be sustained through suspension, cancellation or correction of any registration.

3. The infractions and fines mentioned in Sections 61 and 63 to 67 inclusive of the Animal Pedigree Act, 1988, are applicable to all prejudicial acts concerning breeders and the development and breeding of Canadian Cattle (see Sections 61 and 63 to 67 inclusive of the A.P.A.).

4. Every person who export the breed of Canadian Cattle from Canada or transport same from province to province within Canada, or sells or contracts to sell any such animal or animals as pure bred without furnishing the actual buyer a certificate of registration issued by this Association, is prohibited under the penalty provided for by the Live Stock Pedigree Act. (22-23 George V., Chap. 49, Sect. 18).

24. FEES

The fees will be included in the By-laws of the Association and may be amended at a Board of Directors Meeting of the Association.

25.

Wherever the context permits in this administrative regulations, the singular shall include the plural and the masculine the feminine and the neuter.

26.

The administrative regulations of the Association approved the 3rd day of May nineteen hundred and six, and amendments thereto is hereby repealed.

From 23

RESOLUTION

Since the Flamande bull "ISAK" was accepted as a Canadian Cattle bull, any female sired by this bull conforming with the Rules of Eligibility contained in the By-Laws of the Association shall be registered in order to be entitled to the same privileges as females registered as Canadian Cattle.

Any female sired by the bull "ISAK" shall be registered at a cost of \$8.00, without additional penalty.

RESOLUTION

Members in good standing or non-members of the Association may apply for registration of their cattle, in accordance with the "Rules of Eligibility" contained in article 20 of the By-Laws of the Association.